
 
HEALTHWEST 

 
FULL BOARD MINUTES 

 
April 26, 2024 

 
8:00 a.m. 

 
376 E. Apple Ave. 

Muskegon, MI 49442 
 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
  
The meeting of the Full Board was called to order by Chair Thomas at 8:00a.m.  
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Members Present: Charles Nash, Cheryl Natte, Janet Thomas, Janice Hilleary, John Weerstra, Kim Cyr, 

Marcia Hovey-Wright, Mary Vazquez, Remington Sprague, MD, Tamara Madison, 
Thomas Hardy 

 
Members Absent: Jeff Fortenbacher 
 
Others Present:   Rich Francisco, Holly Brink, Gina Post, Amber Berndt, Shannon Morgan, Brandy 

Carlson, Melina Barrett, Gordon Peterman, Matt Plaska, Christy LaDronka, Pam 
Kimble, Kelly Betts, Amie Bakos, Jennifer Stewart, Ann Gatt, Mickey Wallace, Kristi 
Chittenden, Gina Kim, Urbain Ndoye, Jackie Farrar, Jamie Curtis, Jennifer Hoeker, 
Brittani Duff, Tasha Kuklewski, Susan Plotts 

 
Guests Present: Mark Eisenbarth, Kristen Wade   
 
MINUTES 
 

HWB 74-B - It was moved by Mr. Hardy, seconded by Mr. Weerstra, to approve the minutes of the March 
22, 2024 Full Board meeting as written. 
 

 MOTION CARRIED 
 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
Program Personnel Committee 
 
HWB 65-P - It was moved by Mr. Hardy, seconded by Ms. Thomas, to approve the minutes of the February 
12th meeting as written. 
 

MOTION CARRIED  
 

 
HWB 66-P - It was moved by Ms. Thomas, seconded by Mr. Hardy, to approve the HealthWest Policy and 
Procedure for Background Checks effective April 26, 2024. 
 

           MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
HWB 67-P - It was moved by Mr. Hardy, seconded by Ms. Thomas, to approve the policy and procedural 
changes as described above and attached, effective April 29, 2024. 
 

           MOTION CARRIED 
 
 



April 26, 2024 
Page 2 of 3 
 
HWB 70-P - It was moved by Mr. Hardy, seconded by Ms. Thomas, to approve the policy and procedural 
changes as described above and attached for 05-025 Information System Use, effective April 29, 2024. 
 
 

           MOTION CARRIED 
 
Recipient Rights Committee 
 
HWB 68-R - It was moved by Ms. Natte, seconded by Ms. Thomas, to approve the minutes of the February 
9, 2024 meeting as written.  

 

 MOTION CARRIED 
 

HWB 69-R - It was moved by Ms. Natte, seconded by Ms. Thomas, to approve the Recipient Rights Reports 

for February 2024 / March 2024. 

  
MOTION CARRIED 

 
Finance Committee 
 
HWB 71-F - It was moved by Mr. Hardy, seconded by Commissioner Hovey-Wrigth, to approve the minutes 
of the March 15, 2024, meeting as written.  
 

MOTION CARRIED  

HWB 72-F - It was moved by Mr. Hardy, seconded by Commissioner Hovey-Wright, to approve 
expenditures for the month of February 2024, in the total amount of $8,222,864.46. 

  
MOTION CARRIED 

  
HWB 73-F - It was moved by Mr. Harvey, seconded by Commissioner Hovey-Wright, to authorize the 
HealthWest Board of Directors to sign the amendment to the contract with Relias Learning to purchase 100 
additional Training Seats, increasing the total expenditure to $79, 131.00.  

. 
MOTION CARRIED  

 
Nominating Committee 
 
HWB 76-N - It was moved by Ms. Natte, seconded Ms. Hilleary, to authorize the HealthWest Board Chair 
to make the above Officer appointments, effective April 26, 2024. 
 

MOTION CARRIED  
 

HWB 77-N - It was moved by Ms. Hilleary, seconded Ms. Natte, to authorize the HealthWest Board Chair 
to make the committee appointments, effective April 26, 2024. 

 
 MOTION CARRIED 

 
ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 

 
HWB 75-B - It was moved by Mr. Hardy, seconded by Commissioner Hovey-Wright, to authorize and 
approve the changes to the HealthWest Consumer Advisory Committee members, effective April 29, 2024. 

 
MOTION MOVED 

 



April 26, 2024 
Page 3 of 3 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
There was no old business.  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
There was no new business.  
 
COMMUNICATION 
  
Ms. Kimble presented the Annual Needs Assessment.  
 
Mr. Francisco presented the Annual Report for FY23. However, due to time it was decided to continue the 
remainder of the presentation at the Full Board Meeting on May 31, 2024. 
 
DIRECTOR’S COMMENTS 
 
There was no Director’s comments.  
 
AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
 
There was no audience participation.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the board, the meeting adjourned at 9:27 a.m.  
 
Respectfully, 

 

Janet Thomas 
Board Chair 
/hb 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 TO:  HealthWest Board Members 

  FROM:  Janet Thomas, Board Chair, via Rich Francisco, Executive Director  

  SUBJECT: Full Board Meeting 
April 26, 2024 
376 E. Apple Ave., Muskegon, MI 49442  
https://healthwest.zoom.us/j/92330401570?pwd=TFNHMWhnQmF5NVAybWRQVG54Tk1GZz09 

One tap mobile: (309)205-3325, 92330401570# Passcode: 428623 
 

AGENDA 
  1) Call to Order              Action 
 
  2) Welcome New Board Member Mary Vazquez / Introductions 
  
  3) Approval of Agenda            Action 
  
  4) Approval of Minutes  
 
   A) Approval of the Full Board Minutes of March 22, 2024       Action 
   (Attachment #1 – pg. 1-3) 
 
  5) Public Comment (on an agenda item) 
 
  6) Committee Reports 
 
   A) Program Personnel Committee          Action 
   (Attachment #2 – pg. 4-7) 
 
   B) Recipient Rights Committee          Action 
   (Attachment #3 – pg. 8-10) 
 
   C) Finance Committee           Action 
   (Attachment #4 – pg. 11-14) 
 
   D) Nominating Committee           Action 
   (Attachment #5 – pg. 15) 
 
  7) Items for Consideration 
 
   A) Approval of Changes to HealthWest Consumer Advisory Committee     Action 
   (Attachment #6 – pg. 16) 
  
  8) Old Business 
 
  9)  New Business   
 
  10) Communication  
 

A) Annual Needs Assessment -Pam Kimble, Director of Quality Assurance      Information 
   (Attachment #7 – pg.17-36) 
 

B) Fiscal Year 2023 Annual Report Out -Rich Francisco, Executive Director     Information 
   (Attachment #8 – pg. 37-75) 
   

https://healthwest.zoom.us/j/92330401570?pwd=TFNHMWhnQmF5NVAybWRQVG54Tk1GZz09


April 26, 2024 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 

   C) Employee Recognition - Kelly Betts, Customer Service Specialist          Information 
   (Attachment #9 – pg. 76) 
    
   D) Consumer Advisory Council Update: Tamara Madison           Information 
   (Attachment #10 – pg. 77) 

 
   E) CMHA Summer Conference Save the Date                                                     Information 
   (Attachment #11 – pg. 78) 
 
   F) Director’s Report – Rich Francisco, Executive Director               Information
  
  11)  Public Comment  
 
  12) Adjournment               Action 
 
/hb  



HEALTHWEST 

FULL BOARD MINUTES 

March 22, 2024 

8:00 a.m. 

376 E. Apple Ave. 
Muskegon, MI 49442 

CALL TO ORDER 

The meeting of the Full Board was called to order by Chair Thomas at 8:00 a.m. 

ROLL CALL 

Members Present: Janet Thomas, Thomas Hardy, Marcia Hovey-Wright, Remington Sprague, MD, Janice 
Hilleary, Tamara Madison, Charles Nash, Cheryl Natte, John Weerstra, Jeff Fortenbacher, 
Kim Cyr 

Others Present:  Rich Francisco, Holly Brink, Gina Post, Christy LaDronka, Shannon Morgan, Kristi 
Chittenden, Pam Kimble, Anissa Goodno, Jackie Farrar, Brittani Duff, Tasha Kuklewski, 
Jennifer Hoeker, Amber Berndt, Rachel Harden, Brandon Baskin, Amy Witt, Stacie 
Petersen, Kelly Betts, Melina Barrett, Gina Kim, Gordon Peterman, Latesha Johnson, 
Suzanne Beckeman  

Guests Present: Angela Gasiewski, Matt Farrar 

MINUTES 

HWB  64-B - It was moved by Mr. Hardy, seconded by Dr. Sprague, to approve the minutes of the February 
23, 2024 Full Board meeting as written. 

 MOTION CARRIED. 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

Finance Committee 

HWB 60F - It moved by Mr. Hardy, seconded by Ms. Thomas, to approve the minutes of the February 16, 
2024, meeting as written. 

MOTION CARRIED. 

HWB 61F - It was moved by Mr. Hardy, seconded by Commissioner Hovey-Wrigth, to approve 
expenditures for the month of January 2024, in the total amount of $7,801,706.53. 

MOTION CARRIED. 

HWB 62F – It was moved by Mr. Hardy, second by Commissioner Hovey-Wright, to approve the 
HealthWest Executive Director to accept the Assisted Outpatient Treatment I/I Initiative Grant for a total of 
$308,042 effective April 1, 2024 through September 30, 2025.   

MOTION CARRIED. 

HWB 63F – It was moved by Mr. Hardy, seconded by Ms. Thomas, to authorize the HealthWest Board of 
Directors to approve the projected expenditure with Core Solutions, Inc. with a total of $133,000.00 effective 
October 1, 2023 through September 30, 2024. 

MOTION CARRIED. 

Attachment #1

1



March 22, 2024 
Page 2 of 3

OLD BUSINESS 

There was no old business. 

NEW BUSINESS 

Mr. Hardy shared that he will be presenting on Homelessness at the CMHA Summer Conference in June. 
More details to follow.   

COMMUNICATION 

Brandon Baskin, Rachel Harden, Amy Witt and Stacie Petersen provided a presentation on Care 
Coordination, Housing, Veterans Services and Groups.  

DIRECRTOR’S COMMENTS 

Mr. Francisco, Executive Director, presented his Formal Director’s report. 

• Michigan MichiCANS soft launch update with MDHHS. Had our “touch base” meeting with

MDHHS implementors of MichiCans Monday 3/18. There are only two weeks left of the pilot

testing. Staff will be ready to complete the various trainings as part of the implementation

time from MDHHS. They have divided all training participants into 3 major cohorts for the

entire state. There are about 5000 identified to complete the training, and certification by

Oct. 1, 2024. We are part of Cohort 3, and our training will be in following months:

▪ MichiCANS Certification Training - August and September
▪ Action Planning Training - November and December
▪ Supervisor Training - November and December
▪ Leadership Training – August

• We have received from Stacia, the LRE CFO, an update on the meeting with MDHHS and

actuary (Thursday, 3/21). There seems to be a consensus that the general rates increase

overall is going to be right around 6.28%. However, this can vary by population from April to

September. Stacia is calculating the amounts based on information provided by Milliman

and will share with CMHSPs as soon as that is completed. This increase hopes to address

revenue drops we have been seeing related to PHE ending and revenue dropping.

• Last month, I gave an update on CFAP but recent developments at the state level suggest

that this is not resolved yet. I stated that those that are CCBHC demonstrations are exempt

from Conflict Free requirements. We are hearing that this may only apply to those services

that are CCBHC services and does not apply to the other non-CCBHC services. CMHA

along with other partners have drafted a summary of concerns related to the MDHHS-

proposed Conflict Free access and Planning approach. Some points the group is bringing

up are that consumer choice must be preserved, and how can this happen in CFA (Conflict

Free Access recommendation) along with Self Determination and right to choose providers.

The right to choose case managers and coordinators, right to independent facilitation, the

right to use CMHSP Recipient Rights system.

Lakeshore Regional Entity updates: 

• I shared during Finance Committee that LRE and CMHSPs are holding meetings and
continue to go over the LRE/CMHSP contract.  The date this will be finalized will be in August
or just in time for the next fiscal year. The LRE will continue to extend the contract until the
LRE/CMHSP contract is final, which is going all the way to August in time for September
board approval.

2



March 22, 2024 
Page 3 of 3 

• Update on N180 request for more funds went from 25M to 19M and now down to 17M per 
the most recent meeting at LRE Ops meeting 03/20. Per Bill this is worst case scenario, root 
causes – redetermination revenue drops, about 9 million, increased cost from autism to 7M, 
individuals coming back to services previously opted out of Medicaid about 3M. Other 
considerations they have are onboarding 3 DCOs about 1.8M. This includes Pine Rest, 
Family Outreach Center, Arbor Circle--Currently being paid from capitation right now until 
CCBHC is running well. N180 shared strategies to address the shortfall. Now that April – 
September rates will have added revenue, this may change the bottom-line amount N180 is 
asking for. N180 has strategies to address the remaining shortfall and hopefully will not need 
to tap into the ISF and reserves. 

 
Executive Director activities CMH level: 

• CARF dates have been received, and ours is scheduled for May 15 to 17th. This will be a busy 
time for Staff. Our Quality Improvement team is taking the lead and communicating and 
coordinating the activities related to this audit. 

• We have received most SWOTs (Strength, Weakness, Opportunities and Threats) analysis 
from the teams at HW. Our communications team is aggregating the results to identify 
elements that we can incorporate as updates into the current strategic plan. HW will still hold 
a Strategic planning session and invite the board of directors, and other stakeholders in the 
fall for our strategic plan for FY2026. 

• KATA and lean improvement updates: 
o 75 HealthWest staff completed the training, 2 LRE staff, 1 County staff 12 scheduled 

for March 21st.  
o DEI (1) , Finance (2), Outpatient started a new one, Quality Assurance – 2 

ongoing and 2 in planning stage, UM (1)---- Total 9 KATA projects going on right 
now. 

o 2 teams that have completed a KATA are Autism and Outpatient Services. 
 
On the horizon: 

• Annual Needs submission Due March 31, 2024 (Thanks to Pam and her team for completing 
this report). This report will be presented to the board in April. 

• Utilization Management Committee:  Work on committee structure, data reporting and review 
of data to improve practices. The focus is to expand outside of Utilization review but look at 
other metrics and outcomes that impact clinical operations. 

 
AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
 

There was no audience participation.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
There being no further business to come before the board, the meeting adjourned at 9:02 a.m.  
 

Respectfully, 
 
 
 
Janet Thomas 
Board Chair 
 
/hb 

 
PRELIMINARY MINUTES 

To be adopted and approved at the Full Board Meeting of April 26, 2024 
3



HEALTHWEST 

PROGRAM AND PERSONNEL COMMITTEE REPORT TO THE BOARD 

via Cheryl Natte, Committee Chair 

1. The Program Personnel Committee met on April 12, 2024.

* 2. It was recommended, and I move, to approve the minutes of the February 9, 2024 meeting as
written.

* 3. It was recommended, and I move, to approve the HealthWest Board to approve the HealthWest
Policy and Procedure for Background Checks effective April 26, 2024.

* 4. It was recommended, and I move, to approve the HealthWest Board to approve the policy and
procedural changes as described above and attached, effective April 29, 2024.

* 5. It was recommended, and I move, to approve the HealthWest Board to approve the policy and
procedural changes as described above and attached for 05-025 Information System Use,
effective April 29, 2024.

/hb 

Attachment #2

4



HEALTHWEST 

PROGRAM/PERSONNEL MEETING MINUTES 

April 12, 2024 
8:00 a.m. 

376 E. Apple Ave. 
Muskegon, MI 49442 

CALL TO ORDER 

The regular meeting of the Program/Personnel Committee was called to order by Chair Natte at 
8:00 a.m. 

ROLL CALL 

Members Present: Cheryl Natte, Janet Thomas, Tamara Madison, Thomas Hardy, 
John Weerstra 

Members Absent: Janice Hilleary 

Staff Present:   Holly Brink, Gina Post, Amber Berndt, Rich Francisco, Brandy 
Carlson, Susan Plotts, Linda Wagner, Gary Ridley, Kristi 
Chittenden, Tasha Kuklewski, Jennifer Hoeker, Justine Belvitch, 
Mickey Wallace, Gary Ridley, Gordon Peterman, Anissa Goodno, 
Jackie Farrar, Melina Barrett, Gina Kim, Lakshmee Persuad 

Guests Present:  Kristen Wade 

MINUTES 

It was moved by Mr. Hardy, seconded by Ms. Thomas, to approve the minutes of the 
February 9th meeting as written.

MOTION CARRIED. 

PUBLIC COMMENT (ON AN AGENDA ITEM) 

There was no public comment.  

ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 

It was moved by Ms. Thomas, seconded by Mr. Hardy, to approve the HealthWest Policy and 
Procedure for Background Checks effective April 26, 2024. 

MOTION CARRIED. 

It was moved by Mr. Hardy, seconded by Ms. Thomas, to approve the policy and procedural 
changes as described above and attached, effective April 29, 2024. 

MOTION CARRIED. 

5



Program/Personnel minutes 
April 12, 2024 
Page 2 of 3 

It was moved by Mr. Hardy, seconded by Ms. Thomas, to approve the policy and procedural 
changes as described above and attached for 05-025 Information System Use, effective April 
29, 2024. 

MOTION CARRIED. 

OLD BUSINESS 

There was no old business. 

NEW BUSINESS 

There was no new business. 

COMMUNICATION 

There was no communication.  

DIRECTOR’S COMMENTS 

Executive Director, Rich Francisco, provided an update: 

Mr. Francisco share that that him and Cyndi met with MDHHS director, Donata Kidd, to 

touch base on projects that overlapped with them.  One is an update on the MichiCANS soft 

launch, MDHHS is now doing their soft launch and pilot and are not doing the MichiCANS 

prescreen. They are completing MichiCANs for kids entering the foster care system, and if a 

referral is made to HW it will be routed to us via CC360.  Upon the completion of their 

assessment, we will be keeping our eye on the prescreens referred to our CMH.  The other 

discussion we had was surrounding the Medicaid enrollment process, and Donata was 

going to look more into the various cases where we have individuals that are dropping off 

from DAB to other fund sources.  She is going to look for systemic issues on their end.  In 

the meantime, she wants HW to escalate cases to her to investigate further. 

Staff are busy preparing for CARF now that we have a date set for May 15 to 17th.  Policies 

are being reviewed and sent out for updates and as you saw we are taking new and 

significantly changed policies to the board for approval as well. 

I have been working with the County and Foster Swift (corporate counsel) on developing a 

countywide HIPAA policy and that is now completed.  I have sent it to Mark Eisenbarth and 

other county directors for review.  This would allow the different departments to be on the 

same page for various requests that we receive for PHI.  This should define some of the 

parameters about what we can and cannot share and should make the sharing of 

information more efficient as we coordinate care with these departments. 

Lastly, I am currently working with staff and the communications team on updating the 

Annual Plan and the Strategic Plan.  I will be taking that to the full board at the end of the 

month for updates. 

6



Program/Personnel minutes 
April 12, 2024 
Page 3 of 3 

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 

There was no audience participation. 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to come before the board, the meeting adjourned at 8:10 a.m. 

Respectfully, 

Cheryl Natte  
Program/Personnel Committee Chair 

CN/hb 

PRELIMINARY MINUTES 
To be approved at the Program/Personnel Committee Meeting on 

June 14th, 2024 

7



HEALTHWEST 

RECIPIENT RIGHTS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
REPORT TO THE BOARD 

via Thomas Hardy, Committee Chair 

1. The Recipient Rights Advisory Committee met on April 12,2024.

* 2. It was recommended, and I move, to approve the minutes of the February 9, 2024 meeting
as written. 

* 3. It was recommended, and I move, to approve the Recipient Rights Reports for February
2024   / March 2024. 

/hb 

Attachment #3

8



HEALTHWEST  

RECIPIENT RIGHTS ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 

Friday, April 12, 2024 
8:00 a.m. 

376 E. Apple Ave., Muskegon, MI 49442 

CALL TO ORDER 

The regular meeting of the Recipient Rights Advisory Committee was called to order by Chair Hardy 
at 8:11 a.m. 

ROLL CALL 

Members Present: Janet Thomas, Tamara Madison, Cheryl Natte, Thomas Hardy, John 

Weerstra  

Members Absent:  Janice Hilleary 

HealthWest Staff Present: Rich Francisco, Holly Brink, Gina Post, Brandy Carlson, Kristi 

Chittenden, Susan Plotts, Anissa Goodno, Linda Wagner, Tasha 

Kuklewski, Lakshmee Persaud, Mickey Wallace, Melina Barrett, 

Gordon Peterman, Amber Berndt, Jackie Farrar, Justin Belvitch, Gina 

Kim, Gary Ridley, Jennifer Hoeker 

Guest Present:  Kristen Wade 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

It was moved by Ms. Natte, seconded by Ms. Thomas, to approve the minutes of the February 9, 2024 
meeting as written.  

 MOTION CARRIED. 

ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 

A. Motion to Accept Recipient Rights Reports for February 2024 / March 2024

It was moved by Ms. Natte, seconded by Ms. Thomas, to approve the Recipient Rights Reports for 

February 2024 / March 2024. 

 MOTION CARRIED. 

For the months of February 2024 / March 2024, there were 61 HealthWest and 44 provider employees 
trained: 

Rights Updates HealthWest 44 

Rights Updates Provider 1 

New Employee Training HealthWest/Contracted 16 

New Employee Training Provider 23 

SUD Recipient Rights Orientation Employee 0 

SUD Recipient Rights Orientation Provider 20 

For the months of February 2024 / March 2024 there were 685 incident reports and 23 rights 

allegations.  

9



Recipient Rights Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes 
April 12, 2024 
Page 2 of 2 

Statistical data showing type and code was provided in the enclosed report.  

There were a total of 5 deaths reported in February 2024 / March 2024. 

OLD BUSINESS 

There was no old business. 

NEW BUSINESS 

There was no new business. 

COMMUNICATIONS 

Recipient Rights Advisor, Tasha Kuklewski, provided training on Confidentiality.  

DIRECTOR’S COMMENTS 

There was no Director’s Comments. 

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION / PUBLIC COMMENT  

There was no audience participation.  

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to come before the committee, the meeting adjourned at 8:27 

a.m.

Respectfully, 

Thomas Hardy 

HealthWest Rights Advisory Committee Chair 

TH/hb 

PRELIMINARY MINUTES 
To be approved at the Rights Advisory Committee Meeting of 

June 14, 2024 

10



HEALTHWEST 

FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT TO THE BOARD 

via Janet Thomas, Committee Vice Chair 

1. The Finance Committee met on April 19, 2024.

* 2. It was recommended, and I move to approve the minutes of the March 15, 2024, meeting
as written.

* 3. It was recommended, and I move to approve expenditures for the month of February 2024,
in the total amount of $8,222,864.46.

* 4. It was recommended, and I move to approve the HealthWest Executive Director to sign
the amendment to the contract with Relias Learning to purchase 100 additional Training
Seats, increasing the total expenditure to $79,131.00

/hb

Attachment #4

11



HEALTHWEST 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 

April 19, 2024 
8:00 a.m. 

CALL TO ORDER 

The regular meeting of the Finance Committee was called to order by Committee Vice Chair Thomas at 8:00a.m. 

ROLL CALL 

Committee Members Present: Janet Thomas, Thomas Hardy, Commissioner Marcia Hovey-Wright, 
Remington Sprague, M.D. 

Committee Members Absent: Jeff Fortenbacher, Commissioner Charles Nash 

Also Present: Rich Francisco, Holly Brink, Gina Post, Brandy Carlson, Shannon Morgan, 
Amber Berndt, John Weerstra, Gina Kim, Jackie Farrar, Kristi Chittenden, 
Justine Belvitch, Melina Barrett, Anissa Goodno, Urbaine Ndoye, Mickey 
Wallace, Brittani Duff, Gary Ridley 

Guests Present: Angela Gasiewski, Christina Schaub, William Hirschman 

MINUTES 

It was moved by Mr. Hardy, seconded by Commissioner Hovey-Wrigth, to approve the minutes of the March 15, 
2024, meeting as written.  

MOTION CARRIED 
ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 

A. Approval of Expenditures for February 2024

It was moved by Mr. Hardy, seconded by Commissioner Hovey-Wright, to approve expenditures for the
month of February 2024, in the total amount of $8,222,864.46.

 MOTION CARRIED 
B. Monthly Report from the Chief Financial Officer

Ms. Carlson presented the February report, noting an overall cash balance of $2,511,359.26 as of February
29, 2024.

C. Finance Update Memorandum

Ms. Carlson presented the Finance Update Memorandum for the Board review.

D. HealthWest 2023 Financial Statement

Roslund Prestage & Company presented the HealthWest 2023 Financial Statement for the Board review.

E. Authorization to Approve Contract Increase for Relias Learning

It was moved by Mr. Harvey, seconded by Commissioner Hovey-Wright, to authorize the HealthWest Board
of Directors to sign the amendment to the contract with Relias Learning to purchase 100 additional Training
Seats, increasing the total expenditure to $79, 131.00

MOTION CARRIED 

12



April 19, 2024 
Page 2 of 3 

OLD BUSINESS 

There was no old business. 

NEW BUSINESS 

There was no new business. 

COMMUNICATIONS 

There was no communication.  

DIRECTOR’S COMMENTS 

Mr. Francisco, Executive Director, provided his Director’s Report: 

• I received a notification Memo from the LRE this week. This prompted a review of SEDW services,

possibly our non-compliance with a requirement of the program to provide Wrap Around services each

month to individuals in this program. I am having our Compliance Team and Quality Improvement Team

review the data. There was a change in January per MDHHS that SEDW program recipients get Wrap

Around services, code H2022. While we do not have many kids in the SEDW program, we want to ensure

that we are complying with service delivery requirements.

• HealthWest is also looking into the CCBHC T1040 codes, and reviewing whether we are providing all the
codes related to the mild to moderate services that we are providing.  The LRE is developing reports to
review these codes for accuracy and completeness per CMHSP.  We at HW use this along with our
internal reports as a starting point and to help dig into our encounter reporting related to CCBHC and
adjust procedures or practice if we need to.

• There continues to be ongoing discussion with LRE on the CMHSP/LRE contract. The goal is still to have
the contract finalized by October 1, 2024 and CMHSPs will be signing current contract extensions until
then.

• CARF survey date has now been set, and that will be on May 15th through May 17th. Staff have been busy

preparing and ensuring our policies and procedures for various standard requirements are updated.

Shortly after our CARF audit week, I will be attending the CMHA director’s forum on May 19th.

• NatCon Update:

➢ Successful conference but a very busy conference. There was a handle of themes this year with

one of the biggest themes is the use of AI is various areas of HealthCare and Mental Health. Just

so many areas that are using AI now and the value that it adds to the any sector. We will be seeing

more AI on the day-to-day technology such as in the wearables for diagnostics and prevention and

Electronic medical records enhancement with AI for efficiency.

➢ The TED talk presentations were very successful, and many people truly enjoyed that format more

than the traditional 45 to an hour session on topics.

➢ The conference ended with an interview format presentation with Michelle Obama and interviewed

by renowned author Isabelle Wilkerson. The halls were packed and the presentation was very

encouraging and positive.

• Lastly, Mr. Francisco share that that him and Cyndi met with MDHHS director, Donata Kidd, to touch base

on projects that overlapped with them.  One is an update on the MichiCANS soft launch, MDHHS is now

doing their soft launch and pilot and are not doing the MichiCANS prescreen. They are completing

MichiCANs for kids entering the foster care system, and if a referral is made to HW it will be routed to us

via CC360.  Upon the completion of their assessment, we will be keeping our eye on the prescreens

referred to our CMH.  The other discussion we had was surrounding the Medicaid enrollment process, and

Donata was going to look more into the various cases where we have individuals that are dropping off

13



April 19, 2024 
Page 3 of 3 

from DAB to other fund sources.  She is going to look for systemic issues on their end.  In the meantime, 

she wants HW to escalate cases to her to investigate further. 

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 

Angela Gasiewski, Muskegon County Finance Director, shared the audit report from this year was a very dramatic 
improvement and recognized Ms. Carlson and her Finance Team for all of their hard work and great improvement. 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to come before the committee, the meeting adjourned at 8:36 a.m. 

Respectfully, 

Janet Thomas 
Committee Vice-Chair 

/hb 
PRELIMINARY MINUTES 

To be approved at the Finance Meeting on 
May 17, 2024 

14



HEALTHWEST 

NOMINATING COMMITTEE REPORT TO BOARD 

via Janet Thomas, Chair 

1. The Nominating Committee met on April 26, 2024.

* 2. It was recommended, and I move, to nominate Janet Thomas as Chair of the HealthWest
Board.

* 3. It was recommended, and I move, to nominate Cheryl Natte as Vice-Chair of the
HealthWest Board.

* 4. It was recommended, and I move, to nominate Jeff Fortenbacher as Treasurer of the
HealthWest Board.

* 5. It was recommended, and I move, to nominate Janice Hilleary as Secretary of the
HealthWest Board.

* 6. It was recommended, and I move, to re-appoint Ms. Natte as Chair of the Program
Personnel Committee

* 7. It was recommended, and I move, to re-appoint Ms. Hilleary as Vice-Chair of the
Program/Personnel Committee.

* 8. It was recommended, and I move, to re-appoint Mr. Hardy as Chair of the Recipient Rights
Committee.

* 9. It was recommended, and I move, to re-appoint Ms. Madison as Vice-Chair of the Recipient
Rights Committee.

* 10. It was recommended, and I move, to re-appoint Mr. Fortenbacher as Chair of the Finance
Committee. 

* 11. It was recommended, and I move, to re-appoint Ms. Thomas as Vice-Chair of the Finance
Committee. 

/hb 

Attachment #5

15



REQUEST FOR HEALTHWEST BOARD CONSIDERATION AND AUTHORIZATION 

COMMITTEE 
Full Board 

BUDGETED NON BUDGETED PARTIALLY BUDGETED 
        X 

REQUESTING DIVISION 
Administration  

REQUEST DATE 
April 26, 2024 

REQUESTOR SIGNATURE 
Kelly Betts, Customer Service Specialist 

SUMMARY OF REQUEST (GENERAL DESCRIPTION, FINANCING, OTHER OPERATIONAL IMPACT, POSSIBLE ALTERNATIVES) 

HealthWest Board authorization is requested to approve the changes to the HealthWest Consumer Advisory 
Committee members as suggested below. 

Per Policy: 01-007, the Consumer Advisory Committee shall consist of nine (9) to twelve (12) members defined 
as follows: 
1. Inaugural Persons shall be appointed to the CAC by HealthWest Board. Subsequent CAC Members shall be
recommended by the CAC and appointed by the HealthWest Board.
2. A person who resides or is employed within Muskegon County.
3. A person who shall have the interest, time, and energy to promote the development and/or improvement of
mental health, developmental disability, and substance abuse services in Muskegon County.
4. The CAC shall make every effort to ensure that its membership represents the populations served by
HealthWest in equal proportions.

The Consumer Advisory Committee Facilitators would like to have the following members appointed to 
the Consumer Advisory Committee: 

1. Craig Franklin – Primary Member

SUGGESTED MOTION (STATE EXACTLY AS IT SHOULD APPEAR IN THE MINUTES) 

I move to authorize and approve the changes to the HealthWest Consumer Advisory Committee members, 
effective April 29, 2024. 

COMMITTEE DATE 

April 26, 2024 

COMMITTEE APPROVAL 
 Yes   No     Other 

BOARD DATE 

April 26, 2024 

BOARD APPROVAL 
 Yes   No     Other 

HWB 75-B 

Attachment #6

16



ANNUAL NEEDS ASSESSMENT
KEY FINDINGS ON PRIORITY NEEDS AND PLANNED ACTIONS

HealthWest
Pamela Kimble, Director of Quality Assurance

Attachment #7

17



WHAT IS THE 

ANNUAL DATA 

SUBMISSION 

AND NEEDS 

ASSESSMENT? 2023 Components: 

Waiting Lists

Request for 
Services and 
Disposition of 

Requests

Community 
Data Set

Stakeholder 
Survey

Priority Needs 
and Planned 

Actions

Purpose: To identify, examine, and evaluate 
the mental health needs of the county and 

provide a mechanism to track changes over 
time. 

18



ATTACHMENT A: WAITLISTS - KEY FINDINGS
 HealthWest has not been tracking all waitlisted services. 

 In the process of completed this assessment, the following reportable services were identified as having 

waitlists:

 Employment Services

 Occupational Therapy

 Physical Therapy

 CLS – Adult

 Respite - Adult

 Specialized Residential

 Psychological Services – ADHD Testing

 Note there are non-reportable waitlists that are being tracked:

 Autism

 Methadone

19



WAITLISTS REPORTABLE FOR ANNUAL SUBMISSION

28

21

30

10

2

10
11

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

Employment Services Occupational Therapy Physical Therapy CLS - Adult Respite - Adult Specialized Residential Psychological Services - ADHD
Testing

20



ATTACHMENT A: WAITLISTS – REGIONAL FEEDBACK
 MDHHS responded to a Q&A stating that a waitlist 

is in effect if services are being provided, but not 

in the appropriate amount, scope, and duration due 

to capacity:

 Q. An individual receives 5 of the 10 hours a 

week of skill building they are eligible for, but 

there is no staff currently to provide the 

additional 5 hours. A. the 5 hours that the 

enrollee is NOT receiving would be treated as a 

waitlist because if there was staff, the enrollee 

would be receiving the service. 

 HealthWest does not formally track services that 

are “underserved” due to capacity. 

 HealthWest does have the ability to track over 

and under utilization. However, we cannot easily 

determine why a service is not being utilized as 

authorized. This is an area we are working on.

0.33%

58.61%

41.06%

0.00%

63.04%

36.96%

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

Overutilized Underutilized Within 25% Variance of
Authorized

Utilization of CLS

FY23 FY24

21



ATTACHMENT B: REQUEST FOR SERVICE DATA

22



ATTACHMENT B: REQUEST FOR SERVICE DATA

23



FROM INITIAL CONTACT TO ASSESSMENT COMPLETION

*29% (1285) of people scheduled for assessment did not receive it (dropped out, no show, etc.)

7040 7011

4476

3191
3189

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

8000

PEOPLE  WHO TELEPHONED 
OR WALKED IN WITH ANY 

REQUEST

PEOPLE  WHO REQUESTED 
SERVICES HEALTHWEST  

PROVIDES

PEOPLE  WHO MET 
EL IGIB IL ITY AND WERE 

SCHEDULED FOR 
ASSESSMENT

PEOPLE  WHO RECE IVED 
ASSESSMENT

PEOPLE  WHO WERE 
ASSESSED AND MET 

HEALTHWEST  EL IGIB IL ITY 
CRITERIA

24



FROM INITIAL CONTACT TO ASSESSMENT COMPLETION BY 

POPULATION

292 292 253

211 211

3969 3957

2712

1922 1920

1068 1065
896 772 772

1711 1697

615
286 286

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

4500

PEOPLE  WHO TELEPHONED 
OR WALKED IN WITH ANY 

REQUEST

PEOPLE  WHO REQUESTED 
SERVICES HEALTHWEST  

PROVIDES

PEOPLE  WHO MET 
EL IGIB IL ITY  AND WERE 

SCHEDULED FOR 
ASSESSMENT

PEOPLE  WHO RECE IVED 
ASSESSMENT.  

PEOPLE  WHO MET 
HEALTHWEST  EL IGIB IL ITY 

CRITERIA

IDD All Ages MI Adult SED Unknown/All Other

25



ATTACHMENT C: COMMUNITY DATA SETS

172188

170026 170159

172273

172254

172447

173227

173645

173599

173566
175824

176511

176565

176471

166000

168000

170000

172000

174000

176000

178000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Population: Muskegon Co. 

26



ATTACHMENT C: COMMUNITY DATA SETS

646

691

457

644

584

179

191

135

159

136

129

105

135

161

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Local Continuum of Care Bi-enial Homeless Count: Muskegon Co. 

27



ATTACHMENT C: COMMUNITY DATA SETS

67%

76%

81%

79%

80%

78%

85%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

HealthWest Consumers w/ Identified Primary Care Physician

28



ATTACHMENT D: STAKEHOLDER SURVEY TOP AREAS OF NEED

29



ATTACHMENT D: 

STAKEHOLDER 

SURVEY THEMES

• Trauma, school-based care, coordination w/ schools, more inpatient beds, need CLS,
need groups.

Common Themes: Youth

• Slow response times, high caseloads, not being seen often enough, turn-over, less
experienced staff service most complex needs (experiences staff leave), staff don’t
know individuals, too much changing staff.

Common Themes: Lack of Resources

• Increased overdose, need for follow-up after jail, homelessness

Common Themes: Substance Use

• Increased number of suicides, lack of inpatient beds, need suicide prevention programs

Common Themes: Suicide

• Several respondents noted long or confusing intake processed, felt like they were being
passes around to too many people.

Other Stand Out Items: 

30



ATTACHMENT E: PRIORITY NEEDS AND PLANNED ACTIONS

 Priority Issue 1: Build capacity to provide services to youth and 

families. 

 Hiring-utilizing a robust internship program within youth 

department, specifically at master level. 

 Consider building out prevention program for infant and early 

childhood. 

 Work with school districts to continue mental health provisions in 

schools outside of SOC grant (sustainability efforts).

 Work with Muskegon Fire Department to collaborate on providing 

collaboration on education/treatment of youth with fire setting risk. 

31



ATTACHMENT E: PRIORITY NEEDS AND PLANNED ACTIONS

 Priority Issue 2: Improve staff retention and recruitment. 

 Staff support workgroup evaluates and implements staff support initiatives.

 Morale Monitoring workgroup monitors employee morale and conducts 
employee satisfaction surveys.

 Supervisor Training workgroup with County HR to increase supervisory 
competencies.

 Working on updating the Supervisor Portal on the Compass to be more 
comprehensive, including leadership resources.

 Salary survey to be completed in 2024 for implementation in 2025.

 Career Fairs – HR staff have attended 19 events through 3/31/2024.

 Internships – continue recruiting interns and work on retaining them after they 
graduate.

 Working on a Conflict Resolution Policy

 Working on proactively engaging supervisors to help them get 
performance appraisals on time. 

 Working with County HR to evaluate and implement improved systems to 
complete performance evaluations.

32



ATTACHMENT E: PRIORITY NEEDS AND PLANNED ACTIONS

 Priority Issue 3: Continue focus on serving individuals with substance use disorder.

 Support and Build Recovery Support Services through funding community initiatives.

 Fresh Coast Alliance – Recovery Coaching

 Life Align – Recovery Community Organization

 CCAR Training Opportunities

 Distribute Specialty Grant Funding through community partners.

 Train and retain staff with specialized training and credentials.

 Allocate funding for training opportunities.

 Internal Credentialing Cohort and financial incentives.

 Developing Integrated Care/SUD Focus training for HW clinical staff.

 Integrate EBP’s for co-occurring care through our clinical workflows (SBIRT, Motivational Interviewing, and components of 
integrated dual diagnosis treatment).

 Participate in Community Forums and Collaboratives specific to Substance Use Prevention, Treatment, and Harm Reduction.

33



ATTACHMENT E: PRIORITY NEEDS AND PLANNED ACTIONS

 Priority Issue 4: Improve the ability to track individuals who are waitlisted or underserved due to staffing 

capacity and ensure that services are provided in the appropriate amount, scope, and duration.

 Development of PowerBI report to show services that are underutilized so that we may analyze reasons for underutilization 

and ensure individuals are receiving services as are medically necessary and as authorized.

 Development of tracking mechanism for waitlisted services, consistent with the requirements of Attachment A: Waitlists.

 Continued efforts in all areas to improve access to services, including recruitment and retention of staff and monitoring of 

network adequacy.

34



ATTACHMENT E: PRIORITY NEEDS AND PLANNED ACTIONS

 Priority Issue 5: Continued efforts for suicide prevention. 

 Internally at HealthWest: For the past two years we have been rolling out “Suicide Safer Care” which is the Zero Suicide 
model. HealthWest has a Suicide Safer Care implementation team that meets monthly.

 Externally and within Muskegon County: 

 HealthWest has a long history of working closely with the Suicide Prevention Coalition of Muskegon County

 We are doing suicide prevention trainings and presentations on an ongoing and monthly basis both virtually and in person 

 We are doing monthly presentations that are not specific to suicide but that are aimed to reduce apprehension about 
seeking help.  (Mental Health 101, Trauma 101, Compassion Fatigue & Burnout, among others). 

 We have several trained trainers of suicide prevention curriculum.  We have certified many instructors within the ISD as well 
as within other healthcare providers and community members at large. 

 We have a special focus on youth suicide and this is where many of the schools and the ISD are working with us.  (Trainings, 
several consultations with state and national experts). 

 Currently pulling together community preventionists and service providers to review and implement action steps from the 
CDC’s newly updated guide to stopping contagion or “copycat” deaths by suicide. 

 Suicide in the African American community is on the rise, especially among youth, we are working on a town hall with state 
and local experts to address this topic. 

35



QUESTIONS OR 

COMMENTS

 HealthWest Annual Needs 

Assessment 2023

36



Attachment #8















































































HealthWest Employee Recognition / 
Feedback from Consumers: 

 Customer Service received a phone call on March 21st 

Our customer service team received a phone call today who wanted to express her appreciation for a 
conversation she had with the supervisor of our Youth Behavioral Team, Shaundrica Roberts.   
This caller specifically asked our customer service team to let Shaun know that she appreciates you and 
is thankful for your help today.  Keep up the great work!   

Keep up the GREAT work Shaundrica Roberts!!!!!! 

Feedback for Customer Service on March 26th 

Positive feedback was given to the Customer Service team.  This individual specifically named CJ 
Eastwold and the “front desk secretaries” at the MHC.  “The secretaries up front help me more than you 
know.  They saved my life.  CJ is the only reason I am here today.  She told me she was pulling for me.  
They make me want to be a better person.  They are my angels.”  Keep up the great work!  Thanks for all 
you do.  

Keep up the GREAT work CJ Eastwood & Front Desk Team!!!!!! 

Customer Service received a phone call on April 4th 

“I used to see Dr. Jawor at Hackley Behavioral Health and now she is my doctor at HealthWest, things 
have come full circle.    If I didn’t have Dr. Jawor, I could have been in the hospital right now.  I 
appreciate that woman so much.  She is no-nonsense and she caught my symptoms early.  She is 
working with me, and I am being seen more often to help keep me straight”. 

Dr. Jawor, Keep up the great work!! 

Attachment #9

75



Consumer Advisory Committee Update: 

 The Consumer Advisory Committee met on April 10, 2024 - 

• Committee members request to have a motion for Craig Franklin to be appointed
as a member.

• Special Projects Committee was formed.  Will work with the customer service team
on Consumer Recognition and Walk a Mile.

• Several members have been asked to be interviewed during the CARF survey.

• Consumer Advisory Committee members will be invited during the welcome
meeting for the CARF survey.

• Suzanne Beckman, presented information on the Integrated Health Clinic and the
Med Clinic.

• Gary Ridley, shared information on MDHHS’s approach to conflict-free access and
guidelines.

Attachment #10

76



Attachment #11

77


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Annual Needs Assessment.pdf
	Slide 1: Annual Needs Assessment
	Slide 2: What is the annual data submission and needs assessment? 
	Slide 3: Attachment A: Waitlists - Key Findings
	Slide 4: Waitlists reportable for annual submission
	Slide 5: Attachment a: Waitlists – Regional feedback
	Slide 6: Attachment B: Request for service data
	Slide 7: Attachment B: Request for service data
	Slide 8: From initial contact to assessment completion
	Slide 9: From initial contact to assessment completion by population
	Slide 10: Attachment C: Community Data Sets
	Slide 11: Attachment C: Community Data Sets
	Slide 12: Attachment c: Community data sets
	Slide 13: Attachment D: Stakeholder survey top areas of need
	Slide 14: Attachment D: Stakeholder survey themes
	Slide 15: Attachment e: priority needs and planned actions
	Slide 16: Attachment e: priority needs and planned actions
	Slide 17: Attachment e: priority needs and planned actions
	Slide 18: Attachment e: priority needs and planned actions
	Slide 19: Attachment e: priority needs and planned actions
	Slide 20: Questions or Comments

	Annual Needs Assessment.pdf
	Slide 1: Annual Needs Assessment
	Slide 2: What is the annual data submission and needs assessment? 
	Slide 3: Attachment A: Waitlists - Key Findings
	Slide 4: Waitlists reportable for annual submission
	Slide 5: Attachment a: Waitlists – Regional feedback
	Slide 6: Attachment B: Request for service data
	Slide 7: Attachment B: Request for service data
	Slide 8: From initial contact to assessment completion
	Slide 9: From initial contact to assessment completion by population
	Slide 10: Attachment C: Community Data Sets
	Slide 11: Attachment C: Community Data Sets
	Slide 12: Attachment c: Community data sets
	Slide 13: Attachment D: Stakeholder survey top areas of need
	Slide 14: Attachment D: Stakeholder survey themes
	Slide 15: Attachment e: priority needs and planned actions
	Slide 16: Attachment e: priority needs and planned actions
	Slide 17: Attachment e: priority needs and planned actions
	Slide 18: Attachment e: priority needs and planned actions
	Slide 19: Attachment e: priority needs and planned actions
	Slide 20: Questions or Comments




